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»| SOOR CORPORATE PROFILE

Company'’s Title: Soor Fuel Marketing Co (K. S. C. P.)
Commercial Registry & Date: 113393, dated 9/4/2006

Paid-Up capital: 40,470,758.000 Kuwaiti Dinar
Shared Issued & Subscribed: 404,707,580 shares
Number of shares Authorized: 404,707,580 shares
Headquarters: State of Kuwait — AIMirqab — Bl. 3 — Omar Bin Alkhatab street - KBT
P.O. Box: 28396 — Safat: 13144 — Kuwait

Soor Fuel Marketing Co (K. S. C. P.) was incorporated under the Amiri Decree No (297) of 2005,
issued on 22/11/2005 as a Kuwaiti public shareholding company.

The business activities of the company include acquisition, construction, leasing, operation and
maintenance of the petrol filling stations. The company also constructs, develops, operates and
maintains customers services centers at these stations. These centers provide all services related
to cars and vehicles such as oil change, car wash, maintenance services, repair and technical
testing of vechiles and supermarket services.

The company provides other services such as petrol filling, storage, transfer, leasing and trading
in petrol products and manufactured materials whether wholesale or retail.

The company also purchases, leases, acquires and sells lands and real estates in the various
locations.

The company can perform such business in the state of Kuwait and abroad.

The company may have interests or participate in any manner with any institution which
participates or buys such institutions or have them affiliates.



OUR VISION

To become a leading “fuel marketing company” through acquisition, alliances and
strategic partnerships — delivering diversified & integrated energy solutions — while
growing in size, revenue and presence.
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SOOR VALUES

LEADERSHIP & EXCELLENCE - we are committed to being leaders in our industry and our

country — setting an example for excellence in all what we say & do — in our products, services & actions.

TRUST & INTEGRITY - we are committed to building a long term Relationship with our clients,
partners, employees, & community — one based on mutual respect, trust and the highest standards.

GROWTH & PERFORMANCE - we are committed to providing our partners and shareholders

growth opportunities and profitable returns on their investments.

COMMITMENT & DEDICATION - we are committed to achieving Our goals together — offering

great work environment and professional growth opportunities to our employees.

RESPONSIBILITY / CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP - we are Committed to responsible

citizenship — through active community involvement and respect for our environment.

OUR MISSION

Soor is committed to build a reputation of quality & integrity by providing
innovative products and services to the local and regional markets while
promoting respect for the environment and the society.



12




»| BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Tareef Mohammed Al-Awadhi
Talal Ahmed AlKhars

Sheikh / Faisal Al-Jaber Al-Sabah
Ebtihaj Ibrahim Al-Fawzan

Hani Fawaz Abdulrahman

Essa Ibrahim Al-Mousa

Mishaal Yagoub Al-Omar

Jaber Mohammed Al-Hayjri
Abdulwahab Abdullah Al-Mansouri

Chairman

Vice Chairman & CEO
Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

13






> | Executive Managers

Talal Ahmed AlKhars

Salem Khader Al-Hasawi
Vice Chairman & CEO VP, Sales, Marketing and PR

Hani Mohammed Al-Qallaf Eng. Taha Ahmad Alkhars

VP, Human Resources VP, Technical Services

& Administration

lhab Gamil Ishak Eng. Abdulamir Mallah Al-Jazzaf

VP, Finance & Accounting VP, Operations & logistics Services

15



16

Tarif Mohammed Al-Awadhi
Chairman




P‘ BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT

Dear shareholders,

Greetings & Peace be upon you,

On behalf of myself & my fellow colleagues, members of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present to you the Annual
report of Soor Fuel Marketing Company the audited financial statements for the financial year ended on 31 December
2018.

In the Year 2018 Soor Fuel Marketing Company has had many achievements and realized numerous goals in terms of
environmental projects which includes the vapor recovery system project and the petroleum spills drainage project,
at Salwa fuel station No. 13, Mubarakiah — Bayan fuel station No. 61, Dahar fuel station No. 7, Jleeb Al-Shoyoukh Fuel
Station no. 44, Sabaheya Fuel Station no. 63 and Adan Fuel Station no. 99. Furthermore, Soor Fuel Marketing Company
has started the third phase of renovating and developing Jahra fuel station no. 9 to include the carwash service station,
renovating and re-building Mansoreya fuel station no. 5, to include a carwash service station, a C-store building, a Quick
Service Area, and a training center. Additionally, the company has increased the number of pumps in the newly developed
islands to a total of 14 pumps, as well as, adding Diesel fuel product.

Moreover, Soor Fuel Marketing Company has started the renovation, development, and rebuilding of Saad Al-Abdullah
fuel station No. 108, to include a Quick Service Area and increased the number of pumps in the newly developed islands
to a total of 9 for all fuel products.

Soor Fuel marketing company has adopted a clear strategy that aims at upgrading & renovating its services and oper-
ations, taking into consideration a set of goals that serve the customers first and complies with the requirements of su-
pervisory authorities of the State, as it strives to continue to lead and excel in everything it offers to serve the customers.

Subsequently, the foregoing achievements were reflected in the Company’s net profits during 2018, amounting to KD
3,415,915 (Three million four hundred fifteen thousand nine hundred fifteen Kuwaiti Dinars) from total sales amounting
to KD 156,769,986 (One hundred fifty-six million seven hundred sixty-nine thousand nine hundred eighty-six). Earnings
per share stood at 8.52 Fils during the year and shareholders’ equity increased by 2.62% to KD 67,992,846 (sixty-seven
million nine hundred ninety-two thousand eight hundred forty-six). These figures underline a good financial position and
positive results that reflect Soor Fuel Marketing Company’s unrelenting efforts to maintain its excellent and sustainable
performance.

In conclusion, | am pleased to express my deepest thanks and appreciation to His Highness the Amir, Sheikh Sabah
Al-Ahmed Al-Jaber Al-Sabah. | also wish to thank all our honorable shareholders and esteemed customers for their con-
tinuous support and valuable trust. | also thank all Government Authorities, particularly Kuwait Petroleum Corporation,
Kuwait National Petroleum Company, Environment Public Authority, Fire General Department, Kuwait Municipality and
State Properties Department for their ongoing cooperation and support of the Company’s activities, that has contributed
in promoting growth and development and the attainment of further goals and achievements for many years to come, with
the blessings of Allah.
May Allah Grant us Success

Tarif Mohammed Al-Awadhi
Chairman
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» | ACHIEVEMENTS

Developing and Restructuring of the Fuel Stations

e Implementing the fuel stations’ environmental projects, which include Vapor Recovery System and the Petroleum
Spillage Drainage at Salwa fuel station No. 13, Mubarakiah — Bayan fuel station No. 61, Dahar fuel station No. 7,
Jleeb Al-Shoyoukh Fuel Station no. 44, Sabaheya Fuel Station no. 63 and Adan Fuel Station no. 99.

e Developed and commenced operations of the automatic and manual carwash service area at Jahra fuel station
No. 9 — Phase Il

e Completion of the renovations and commencing operations at Salwa fuel station No. 13 to include a Quick Service
Area, an automatic carwash station and a Convenience Store. In addition, more fuel dispensers were added to

make a total of 15 dispensers.

e Renovation, development, and rebuilding of Mansoreya fuel station No. 5 to include a Quick Service Area, Automatic
Carwash Station and a Convenience Store Building. In addition, more fuel dispensers were added to make a total
of 14 dispensers.

e Starting the renovation, development, and re-building of fuel station No. 108 at Saad Al-Abdullah, with a Quick
Service Area, an automatic car wash station and a Convenience Store Building. In addition, more fuel dispensers
were added to make a total of 9 dispensers.

e Maintaining and repairing the floors at Al-Masayel fuel station No. 124.

Marketing Achievements

Social Responsibility

e Soor Fuel Marketing Company sponsored more than one project of the Kuwait University students — Engineering
Department (The Collector Robot, Kuwait Diamond, Runway).

e Sponsorship of Woman Tournament 3.0 for supporting youth and sport in general.

e Sponsorship of the Bahrain Racing Championship. This sponsorship by Soor Company was inspired by our desire
to support young people in all fields.

e Organizing the Alfa Championship for Hurdle Jumping in support of the horse riding sport.

e Sponsorship of Al-Rajaa Private Elementary School by maintaining and rehabilitating the classrooms.

e Sponsorship of The Proteges program, which is a program design to enhance the skills of young people and
motivate them to recognize their potential and ambition.

e Sponsorship of the Recruitment Conference of the Public Authority for Applied Education & Training.

Sales Growth

e Anincrease of 9% in the sales of cards compared to 2017.

e Anincrease of 16% in the sales of postpaid and prepaid cards compared to 2017.

e |ncreased coverage of bank guarantees to customers by 25%

High Card recharge rate by 81%

In 2018, the refueling contract has been renewed with the Ministry of Awgaf for another year

Business Development

e Signing with Trolley General Trading Company to operate the Convenience Store Building at Salwa fuel station
No. 19

e Signing with Behbehani Auto Service Company for Spare Parts (BASCO) to provide a fast maintenance service for
cars at Al-Ardiah fuel station No. 76

e Signing with Ali Mohammed Thunayan Alghanim & Sons Company for Car Spare Parts to provide a fast maintenance
service for cars at Al-Mansouriah fuel station No. 5

Operations and Logistics Services Achievements
e Organizing and Updating Station’s documents & records to comply with the development of business at the stations
e Reducing the use of paper by implementing the electronic communications method.
e |ncreasing Sales through:
- Limiting the occurrence of safety breaks incidents.
- Provide safe packages that meet international safety and environmental standards.
- Organizing and managing the movement of vehicles when refueling to serve the maximum number of customers.
- Allowing refilling from both sides subject to safety conditions.
- Enhancing the communications between the stations and supervisors 24/7 to instantly report any problems or
breakdowns and use the backup machinery efficiently.
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Monitoring and tracking the inventory remotely via the Internet to ensure the availability of sufficient fuel in all stations
Segregation of hazardous waste from the non-hazardous ones, which are generated from stations

Training 5 groups of new employees on managing and operating fuel stations theoretically and practically
Awarding outstanding employees in the management of operations and logistics

Organizing regular training courses for staff on best practices to manage and operate stations (supervisors, security
guards, workers)

Health, Safety, Environment, and Quality (HSEQ)

Disposal of liquid and solid hazardous waste as per the requirements of Kuwait Environment Public Authority
Enforcing safety, health, environmental and quality requirements to contractors and investors

Three fuel stations have successfully passed the Code of Practice & FIC system of the regulatory entity at KNPC
with a rate of 100% (22-27-56).

Arranging daily meetings with station’s staff and investors to spread awareness about safety, health, and
environmental procedures and Emergency Evacuaction.

Training the stations’ staff on the standards of the Code of Practice & FIC system.

Administrative and Human Resources Achievements

Achieving 100% of recruiting Kuwaiti labor in the fuel stations in 2018

Training 120 Station attendant from the national labor, in cooperation with Kuwait Fire Service Directorate in term
of safety, health, and environment

Training 120 employees on first aid skills in coordination with the Australian University to provide training, with a
two-year license for each staff

In collaboration with the workforce-restructuring program, the training plan for 2018 was executed to qualify 120
newly hired employees from the national cadres technically and administratively on the highest standards through
utilizing globally certified training institutes

Appointing 80 new mentors and training them on managing and operating fuel stations, theoretically and practically,
in cooperation with the related departments

Applying the labor law regulations into practice in accordance with the requirements of the Public Authority of
Manpower and the Ministry of Social Affairs and Labor

Developing the organization structure, updating job descriptions and internal policies, as well as investing in staff
skills by adopting staff promotions, succession planning, and career development

Contributing to fulfilling the conditions of the Ministry of Finance - Taxation Department for 2018

Minimizing operating expenses of the company by coordinating with all the departments

Future Plans

Implementing the environmental projects at Alfa fuel stations according to the Five Year Plan adopted by Kuwait
National Petroleum Company (KNPC).

The renovation, development, and re-building of Mansoreya fuel station no. 5, Saad Al-Abdullah fuel station no. 108
Renovation, development, and re-building of Farwanya fuel station no. 80, Sulaibeya no. 81, a fuel station no. 84 and
Sabah Al-Salem fuel station No. 66. In addition to, increasing the number of fuel dispensers in the renovated islands
for various products, and adding an automatic carwash station, a Quick Service Area, and a Convenience Store.
Maintaining the floors and building insulation at Hawalli fuel station No. 34

Maintaining 100% of Kuwaiti labor recruitment in the fuel stations in 2019.

Reducing employee turnover and seeking to support and quality the company’s employees.

Maximizing production efficiency through planning the Company’s human resources needs in terms of quantity and
quality by the use of modern scientific methods in general and statistical and arithmetic means in particular.
Supporting and training the Kuwaiti cadres, as well as implementing the training plan adopted by the Public
Authority of Manpower and KFAS.

Establishing a training center to provide quality and enhance knowledge, develop skills and enrich the company. In
addition, its cost-effective training is designed to increase individual and organizational productivity.

Establish a training hall, for awareness meetings and seminars in coordination with all the departments.

Strengthen the coordination with all government authorities in order to fulfill the conditions related to the licenses of
the fuel stations and car wash stations.

Enhance coordination among all the company departments to follow up the development and improvement of the
fuel and car wash stations.

Develop an advanced inventory system for the assets of the company in order to complete the

Company’s audit procedures and fulfill the regulatory requirements of the Capital Markets Authority
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THANK
YOU

A WORD OF APPRECIATION

Soor Fuel Marketing Company expresses its
sincere gratitude and appreciation to all those who
contributed to the success of the company during
the financial year 2018.

On this occasion, we present our deepest gratitude
to His Highness Sheihk Sabah Al-Ahmed Al Jaber Al
Sabah, Amir of State of Kuwait, for his wise leadership
of the State of Kuwait and his kind support for our
local economy to activate the wheel of development.

We would also like to extend our thanks and
gratitude for Kuwait Petroleum Corporation, Kuwait
National Petroleum Company and the Ministry of
Finance for their valuable help and continuous
advice. We especially thank the General Authority of
Environment, General directorate of Fire and Kuwait
Municipality.

Soor Fuel Marketing Company extends great
recognition to all the employees for their devotement
and hard work that led to the great achievements last
year. Thanks to their commitment and cooperation
among themselves and with the company, our
success had been built and will continue to progress,
grow and spread.

Thank you all for your efforts and your continued
support. We grow and evolve with you and by you...

Soor Fuel Marketing Company

m

2



22



AL SOOR FUEL MARKETING COMPANY
K.S.C.P.
AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS of Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P.

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. (the “Parent Company”) and
its subsidiary (collectively the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,
and the consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial state-
ments of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed
to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accom-
panying consolidated financial statements.

We identified the following key audit matter:

- INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS of Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. (continued)
- Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

- Key Audit Matters (continued)

- Valuation of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income amounting to
KD 23,920,303. These financial assets are measured at fair value with the corresponding fair value change recognized in other com-
prehensive income. The valuation of the financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income is inherently subjective
- most predominantly for the level 3, since these are valued using inputs other than quoted prices in an active market. Fair value can
be subjective in nature and involve various assumptions regarding pricing factors.

The use of different valuation techniques and assumptions could produce significantly different estimates of the values of these finan-
cial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Due to the significance of estimation uncertainty associated with the fair valuation and impairment analysis of the financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income, this is considered a key audit matter. We performed audit procedures to assess
the methodology and the appropriateness of the valuation models and inputs used to value financial assets fair value through other
comprehensive income. As part of these audit procedures, we assessed the accuracy of key inputs used in the valuation such as
quoted market prices, market multiples, and discount rates for lack of marketability and lack of control, the expected cash flows, risk
free rates and credit spreads by benchmarking them with external data, investigated significant differences. Finally, we assessed the
adequacy of the disclosures relating to financial assets in notes 10 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other information included in the Group’s 2018 Annual Report

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the information included in Group’s 2018 Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We obtained the report of the Parent Com-
pany’s Board of Directors, prior to the date of our auditor’s report, and we expect to obtain the remaining sections of the Group’s 2018
Annual Report after the date of our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the
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other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
IFRSs and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from ma-
terial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggre-
gate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken based on these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circum-
stances, but not for expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair pre-
sentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Those Charged with Governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Those Charged with Governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regard-
ing independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Those Charged with Governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare cir-
cumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and the consolidated fi-
nancial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors relating to these
consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report that we obtained all the information and
explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the consolidated financial statements incorporate all
information that is required by the Companies Law No 1 of 2016, as amended, and its executive regulation, as amended,
and by the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, that an inventory
was duly carried out and that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies Law No 1 of 2016,
as amended, and its executive regulation, as amended, nor of the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation
and Articles of Association, as amended, have occurred during the year ended 31 December 2018 that might have had a
material effect on the business of the Parent Company or on its financial position. 2 5
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AL SOOR FUEL
MARKETING COMPANY K.S.C.P.

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company
K.S.C.P. (the “Parent Company™) and its subsidiary (collectively the “Group”), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

1In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

We identified the following key audit matter:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AL SOOR FUEL
MARKETING COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Key Audit Matters (continued)
Valuation of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income amounting to KD 23,920,303. These financial assets are measured at fair value with the
corresponding fair value change recognized in other comprehensive income. The valuation of the
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income is inherently subjective - most
predominantly for the level 3, since these are valued using inputs other than quoted prices in an
active market. Fair value can be subjective in nature and involve various assumptions regarding
pricing factors.

The use of different valuation techniques and assumptions could produce significantly different
estimates of the values of these financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Due to the significance of estimation uncertainty associated with the fair valuation and impairment
analysis of the financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, this is considered
a key audit matter. We performed audit procedures to assess the methodology and the
appropriateness of the valuation models and inputs used to value financial assets fair value through
other comprehensive income. As part of these audit procedures, we assessed the accuracy of key
inputs used in the valuation such as quoted market prices, market multiples, and discount rates for
lack of marketability and lack of control, the expected cash flows, risk free rates and credit spreads
by benchmarking them with external data, investigated significant differences. Finally, we assessed
the adequacy of the disclosures relating to financial assets in notes 10 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Other information included in the Group’s 2018 Annual Report

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the information
included in Group’s 2018 Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. We obtained the report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors, prior
to the date of our auditor’s report, and we expect to obtain the remaining sections of the Group’s
2018 Annual Report after the date of our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on
the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AL SOOR FUEL
MARKETING COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken based on these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AL SOOR FUEL
MARKETING COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concermn basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the conselidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Those Charged with Governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Those Charged with Governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Those Charged with Governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.



EY

Building a better
workIng world

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AL SOOR FUEL
MARKETING COMPANY K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and
the consolidated financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent
Company’s Board of Directors relating to these consolidated financial statements, are in
accordance therewith. We further report that we obtained all the information and explanations
that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the consolidated financial statements
incorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No 1 0£2016, as amended, and
its executive regulation, as amended, and by the Parent Company's Memorandum of
Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, that an inventory was duly carried out and
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies Law No 1 of 2016,
as amended, and its executive regulation, as amended, nor of the Parent Company’s
Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended, have occurred during
the year ended 31 December 2018 that might have had a material effect on the business of the
Parent Company or on its financial position.

BADER A. AL-ABDULJADER
LICENCE NO. 207-A

EY

AL AIBAN, AL OSAIMI & PARTNERS

19 March 2019
Kuwait



Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Notes KD KD

Sales 156,769,986 150,328,071
Cost of sales 19 (143,855,393)  (137,854,788)
Operating expenses (10,273,780) (8,642,955)
Gross profit 2,640,813 3,830,328
Other income 3,424,075 2,934,682
Rental income 350,900 247,095
Net investment income 4 519,041 513,043
Share of results of investment in an associate (338,593) (100,412)
Gain from sale of investment in an associate 9 518,858 575,000
Administrative expenses (1,893,745) (2,205,797)
Staff cost (970,573) (1,096,130)
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables 11 (614,169) (1,021,210)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE CONTRIBUTION TO

KUWAIT FOUNDATION FOR THE ADVANCEMENT OF SCIENCES

(KFAS), NATIONAL LABOUR SUPPORT TAX (NLST), ZAKAT AND

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 3,636,607 3,676,599
Contribution to KFAS (32,869) (33,096)
NLST (91,302) (91,933)
Zakat (36,521) (36,773)
Directors’ remuneration 13 (60,000) (55,000)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 3,415,915 3,459,797

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 5 8.52 fils 8.63 fils




Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
TItems that will not be reclassified subsequently to consolidated statement
of income:
Net fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Other comprehensive income for the year

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

2018 2017
KD KD

3,415,915 3,459,797
324,758 1,063,135
324,758 1,063,135

3,740,673 4,522,932




Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2018

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Investment properties

Investment in an associate

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Current assets

Inventories

Accounts receivable and prepayments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash, bank balances and term deposits

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Share capital

Statutory reserve

Voluntary reserve

Treasury shares

Cumulative changes in fair value reserve
Retained earnings

Total equity

Liabilities

Non-current liability
Employees’ end of service benefits

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accruals
Term loan

Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Turaif Mohammad Bager Al 4wadhi
{Chairman)

2018 2017

Notes KD KD
6 22,671,578 19,410,690
7 12,235,736 12,929,500
8 4,550,441 4,550,010
9 - 1,927,375
10 23,920,303 21,590,352
63,378,058 60,407,927
589,044 725,189
11 5,880,950 9,638,414

10 994,372 -
12 16,814,051 28,039,213
24,278,417 38,402,816
87,656,475 98,810,743
13 40,470,758 40,470,758
14 4,980,145 4,616,484
15 4,980,145 4,616,484
16 (760,279) (760,279)
4,375,374 6,103,229
13,946,763 11,210,189
67,992,846 66,256,865
854,302 760,442
17 18,809,327 13,971,951
- 17,821,485
19,663,629 32,553,878
87,656,475 98,810,743
e

Talal Ahmad Al-Khars  ~
(Vice Chairman & CEO)
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Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year before contribution to KFAS, NLST, and Zakat
Adjustments to reconcile profit for the year to net cash flows:

Gain from sale of investment in an associate

Net investment income

Share of results of associates

Depreciation and amortisation

Provision for employees’ end of service benefits

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables

Unrealised gain from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Changes in the working capital:
Inventories

Accounts receivable and prepayments
Accounts payable and accruals

Cash flows from operations

Employees’ end of service benefits paid
KFAS paid

NLST paid

Zakat paid

Directors’ fees paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of investment properties

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Proceeds from sales of investment in an associate

Term deposits

Investment income received

Net cash flows used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Term loan

Repayment of term loan

Cash dividend

Net cash flows (used in) from financing activities

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER

Notes

~) O =~ O

&~

oo O\

12

2018 2017
KD KD
3,576,607 3,621,599

(518,858) (575,000)
(518,002) (513,043)
338,593 100,412
2,041,891 1,811,613
152,150 139,760
614,169 1,021,210
(1,039) -
5,685,511 5,606,551
136,145 (68,935)
3,143295  (4,031,705)
4,672,925 882,277
13,637,876 2,388,188
(58,290) (15,857)
(33,096) (32,487)
(118,676) (97,378)
(45,929) (37,912)
(55,000) (50,000)
13,326,885 2,154,554
(4,570,446)  (3,129,189)
(39,000) -
(6,625,735) (823,536)
(993,333) -
4,620,542 654,015
2,107,640 575,000
(1,000,000)  (1,000,000)
518,002 513,043
(5,982,330)  (3,210,667)
- 37,358,520
(17,821,485)  (19,537,035)
(1,748,232)  (1,748,232)
(19,569,717) 16,073,253
(12,225,162) 15,017,140
19,039213 4,022,073
6,814,051 19,039,213




Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2018

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. (the “Parent Company™) is a Kuwaiti shareholding company incorporated on
20 March 2006 and commenced its operations on 9 May 2006. The Parent Company’s shares were listed on the Kuwait
Stock Exchange on 30 June 2008.

The consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2018 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors® on 14 March 2019
and are subject to the approval of the general assembly of shareholders. The ordinary general assembly of the shareholders
of the Parent Company has the power to amend these consolidated financial statements after their issuance.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 was approved by the
shareholders of the Parent Company during the annual general assembly meeting held on 22 April 2018.

The Group conducts the following activities as set forth in Article No. 5 of the Parent Company’s Articles of Association:

- Acquisition, establishment, leasing, operating, and maintenance of petrol stations;

- Establishing, developing, operating and maintaining customer service centers at petrol stations, to provide all
automobile services including the changing of oil, car wash, maintenance workshop services and technical check-
ups;

- The ability to fill and store fuel;

- To ship and trade in petroleum products in bulk or retail;

- The purchase, lease, acquisition, and sale of land and real estate in different locations for the purpose of compliance
with the Parent Company’s activities;

The head office of the Parent Company is P.O. Box 28396, Safat 13144, State of Kuwait.
The Parent Company is a subsidiary of Alfa Energy Company K.S.C. (Closed) (the “Ultimate Parent Company™).
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance ) ) '
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) as issued by the International Accomnting Standards Board (“IASB”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified for the
revaluation at fair value of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Functional and presentation currency o .
The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented in Kuwaiti Dinars (“KD”), which is the functional
currency of the Parent Company.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those used in the previous
financial year, except as mentioned below:

New and amended standards and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are consistent with those
followed in the preparation of the Group’s annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017,
except for the adoption of new standards effective as of 1 January 2018 as below. The Group has not early adopted any
other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers was issued in May 2014 and is effective for annual periods commencing
on or after 1 January 2018. IFRS 15 outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers and supersedes previous revenue guidances. It established a new five-step model that will apply
to revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
Group has applied IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective application. The Group concluded that it has no impact from
the application of IFRS 15.



Al door Fuel Marketing Company K.5.C.P. and 1ts dubsigiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2018

23 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when
they become effective.

IFRS 16 Leases

In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ with an effective date of annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. IFRS 16 results in lessees accounting for most leases within the scope of the standard in a manner similar
to the way in which finance leases are currently accounted for under JAS 17 ‘Leases’. Lessees will recognise a ‘right of
use’ asset and a corresponding financial liability on the balance sheet. The asset will be amortised over the length of the
lease and the financial liability measured at amortised cost. Lessor accounting remains substantially the same as in IAS
17. The Group plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date. However, as the management are still in
the process of assessing the full impact of the application of IFRS 16 on the financial statements, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable financial estimate of the effect until the management complete the detailed review.

Other new or amended standards which are issued but not yet effective, are not relevant to the Group and have no impact
on the accounting policies, financial position or performance of the Group.

24 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary as at
31 December 2018. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those retarns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

e Power over the investee (i.c., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of

the investee);
e  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
= The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption and when
the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

e The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee;

e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.

Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of OCI are attributed to the equity holders of the Parent Company of the Group and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent Company reporting date using
consistent accounting policies. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-
controlling interest and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
statement of income. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.



Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2018

24 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)

The subsidiary of the Group is as follows:

Country of
Name of the company incorporation Principal activities Interest in equity %
2018 2017
Advantage for Establishing Central Operating Central
Markets Company K.S.C. (Closed)* Kuwait Markets 96% 96%

*Effective ownership percentage is 100% (2017: 100%).
25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue recognition
The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources:
e Sale of fuel

o Rendering of services

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in a contract witha customer and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control of a service to
a customer. The Group follows a 5-step process:

Identifying the contract with a customer

Identifying the performance obligations

Determining the transaction price

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations
Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied

Revenue is recognised either at point in time or over time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

The Group recognises contract liabilities for consideration rcccived iu respect of unsatisfied performance obligations and
reports these amounts, if any, as other liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position. Similarly, if the Group
satisfies a performance obligation before it receives the consideration, the Group recognises either a contract asset or
receivable, if any, in its statement of financial position, depending on whether something other than the passage of time is
required before the consideration is due.

The following specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of fuel
Sale of fuel income is recognised when the Group satisfies performance obligations by transferring the controlied
promised goods or services to its customers at an agreed rate.

Rendering of services
The Group earns service income from diverse range of services provided to its customers and is recognised at pre-agreed
rates in accordance with the contractual terms.

Interest income

Interest revenue is recognised as the interest accrues using the effective interest method, under which the rate used exactly
discounts, estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when
shareholders approve the dividend.

Rental income
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.



Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and 1ts Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2018

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation
National Labour Support Tax (NLST)

The Parent Company calculates the NLST in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Minister of Finance Resolutions
No. 24 of 2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit for the year. As per the law, income from associates and subsidiaries, cash
dividends from listed companies which are subjected to NLST are deducted from the profit for the year.

Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

The Parent Company calculates the contribution to KFAS at 1% in accordance with the modified calculation based on
the Foundation’s Board of Directors’ resolution, which states that the income from associates and subsidiaries, Directors’
remuneration, transfer to statutory reserve should be excluded from profit for the year when determining the contribution.

Zakat

Contribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit of the Parent Company in accordance with the Ministry of Finance
resolution No. 58/2007.

Property and equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

. Buildings on leaschold land 15 years
. Installations and equipment 5-15 years
® Furniture and fixtures 1-5 years
° Motor vehicles 5 years

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed
the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount, being the higher of their fair
value less costs to sell and their value in use.

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment that is accounted for separately is
capitalised and the carrying amount of the component that is replaced is written off. Other subsequent expenditure is
capitalised only when it increases future economic benefits of the related item of equipment. All other expenditure is
recognised in the consolidated statement of income as the expense is incurred.

An item of property and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
consolidated statement of income when the asset is derecognised.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in
a business combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in the
consolidated statement of income in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at each reporting date.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the consolidated
statement of income in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.



Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2018

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (continued) ‘

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individuaily
or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated statement of income when the asset
is derecognised.

Gooadwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value
of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the gain is recognised in the consolidated
statement of income.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Contracts backlog

Contracts backlog acquired separately are measured at cost on initial recognition. Contracts backlog acquired in business
combination have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight line method to allocate the cost of Contracts backlog over their
estimated useful lives (3 years).

The carrying amount of contracts backlog is reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any i.nflication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of income,
being the difference between carrying value and the asset’s recoverable amount.

Leasehold right .
Leasehold right acquired is measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, leasehold rights are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Leasehold right is amortised over their useful economic life (30 years) and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the leasehold right may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for leasehold
right is reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on leasehold rights
is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an leasehold right are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the right and are recognised in the consolidated statement of income when the asset
is derecognised.

License

License acquired separately is measured at cost on initial recognition. License acquired in busmess combination pav.e a
finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight line method to allocate the cost of license over their estimated useful lives (30 years).

The carrying amount of license is reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication. of
impairment. If any such indication exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of income, being
the difference between carrying value and the asset’s recoverable amount.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

Software
Software acquired separately is measured at cost on initial recognition. The software has finite useful life and is carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated using straight line method to allocate the cost of software over its estimated useful life of 3

years. The carrying amount software is assessed and adjusted for impairment whenever there is an indication that it may
be impaired.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows.

Investment in associates .
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in its associate are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in associates is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the
investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate since the acquisition date.
Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortised nor
individually tested for impairment.

The consolidated statement of income reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate. Any change
in other comprehensive income of the associate is presented as part of the Group’s other comprehensive income. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.

The Group’s share of results of an associate is included as part of net investment loss shown on the face of the consolidated
staternent of income.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent Company. In case of
different reporting date of an associate, which are not more than three months from that of the Group, adjustments are
made for the effects of significant transactions or events that occur between that date and the Group’s reporting date.
‘When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on
its investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the
investment in associates is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value, then recognises as part of net
investment losses shown on the face of the consolidated statement of income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at i’fs
fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying amount includes the cost of
replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and
excludes the costs of day to day servicing of an investment property.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment. The estimated life of the buildings is 40 years and is depreciated on a straight line basis. Land on which the
property is constructed is not depreciated.

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in the consolidated statement of income in
the period of derecognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from inve_stment
property to owner occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the cost at the date of change in use.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset
or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value
less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.

The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of income unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Cash and short-term deposits
Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, bank balances and
short-term deposits, as defined above.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the purchase price, import duties,
transportation, handling and other direct costs. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable vatue
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or issue of financial liabilities (other than on financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or issue financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in consolidated statement of
income.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets such as accounts receivable, amount due from related parties and cash and cash equivalents that meet the
following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:
o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and
e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss except for equity instruments whm
the Group may make an irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition to recognize fair value in other comprehensive
income,
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and effective interest method o
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments at amortised cost, the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised
cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Financial assets at FVOCI

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate
investments in equity instruments as at FVOCL Designation at FVOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is held
for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3
applies.

Investments in equity instruments at FVOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the cumulative changes in fair values reserve. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to consolidated statement of income on disposal of the equity investments, instead, they will be transferred to
retained earnings.

The Group has designated all investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading as at FVOCI on initial
application of IFRS 9.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in consolidated statement of income when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost.
No impairment loss is recognised for equity instruments that are classified as financial assets at FVOCL The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables which generally do not have a significant financing
component. The expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate. Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a trade receivables.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets at amortised cost
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events, constituting an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience indicates, that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of that financial asset have occurred that meet below criteria. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

e abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event,;

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,

having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;
e it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off of financial assets at amortised cost

The Group writes off a financial asset at amortised cost when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries
made are recognised in consolidated statement of income.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude
of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as described above. As for the exposure at
default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

The Group recognises an impairment loss in consolidated statement of income for all financial assets at amortised cost
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantialty
all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

From 1 January 2017 any cumulative gain/loss recognised in OCI in respect of equity investment securities designated as
at FVOCI is not recognised in consolidated statement of income on derecognition of such securities. Any interest in
transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate
asset or liability.

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Group evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified asset are
substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the
original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a new
financial asset is recognised at fair value.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank overdrafts, accounts payable and accruals and bank borrowings (term loans,
murabaha payable and tawaruq payable).

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below:
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Bank borrowings

Term loan

Term loan is carried on the consolidated statement of financial position at their principal amount. Instalments due within
one year are shown as current liabilities. Interest is charged as an expense as it accrues, with unpaid amounts included in
accounts payable and accruals.

Accounts payable and accruals
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by the supplier
or not.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
the consolidated statement of income.

Fair values of financial instruments
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

- Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

‘When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques
including the DCF model and price to book model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 24 for further disclosures.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

° Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

An analysis of fair value of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured are provided in note 24.



Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2018

25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value of investments properties

The determination of fair value of investment properties requires the use of estimates such as future cash flows from assets
(such as lettings, tenants’ profiles, future revenue stream, capital value of fixtures and fittings, plant and machinery, any
environmental matters and the overall repair and condition of the property) and discount rates applicable to those assets. In
additions, development risks (such as construction and letting risks) are also taken consideration when determining the fair

value of investment properties under construction. These estimates are based on local market conditions existing at reporting
date.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares consist of the Parent Company’s own issued shares that have been reacquired by the Group and not yet
reissued or cancelled. The treasury shares are accounted for using the cost method. Under this method, the weighted
average cost of the shares reacquired is charged to a contra account in equity. When the treasury shares are reissued, gains
are credited to a separate account in equity, “treasury shares reserve”, which is not distributable. Any realised losses are
charged to the same account to the extent of the credit balance on that account. Any excess losses are charged to retained
earnings and then to the statutory and voluntary reserves. Gains realised subsequently on the sale of treasury shares are
first used to offset any previously recorded losses in the order of reserves, retained earnings and the treasury shares reserve
account. No cash dividends are paid on these shares. The issue of stock dividend increases the number of treasury shares
proportionately and reduces the average cost per share without affecting the total cost of treasury shares.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and
requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Group as a lessee

Leases where the lcssor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating
leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except for contingent rental payments which are expensed when they arise.

Employees’ end of service benefits

The Group provides end of service benefits to its employees under the Kuwait Labour Law. The entitlement to these
benefits is based upon the employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum service
period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment.

In addition to the above, with respect to its national employees, the Group also makes contributions to Public Institution
for Social Security scheme, calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group’s obligations are limited to
these contributions, which are expensed when due.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it earns revenues
and incurs costs. The operating segments are used by the management of the Group to allocate resources and assess
performance is consistent with the internal reports provided to the chief executive operation and the board of directors.
Operating segments exhibiting similar economic characteristics, product and services, class of customers where
appropriate are aggregated and reported as reportable segments.



Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2018

25 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in KD, which is also the Parent Company’s functional
currency. For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency. The Group uses the direct method of consolidation and has elected
to recycle the gain or loss that arises from using this method.

i) Transactions and balances ]
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the consolidated statement of income
with the exception of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the
cumulative amount is reclassified to the consolidated statement of income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
the consolidated statement of income.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

Contingencies o
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements, but are disclosed unless the possibility of
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Group has used judgment and
estimates principally in, but not limited to, the following:

Valuation of unquoted investments
Valuation of unquoted equity securities is normally based on one of the following:

Recent arm’s length market transactions;

Current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same;

Earnings multiples;

Price to book multiples;

The expected cash flows discounted at current rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk
characteristics;

. Underlying net asset base of the investment; or

o Other valuation models

The determination of the cash flows, earnings multiples, price to book multiples and discount factors for unquoted equity
securities requires significant estimation.

Impairment of trade receivables

An estimate of the collectible amount of trade accounts receivable is made when collection of the full amount is no longer
probable. For individually significant amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are
not individually significant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the
length of time past due, based on historical recovery rates.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

Impairment of financial assets at amortised cost- policy

The impairment provisions for financial assets disclosed in Note 11 are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period

Impairment of inventories

Inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When inventories become old or obsolete, an estimate is
made of their net realisable value. For individually significant amounts this estimation is performed on an individual basis.
Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are old or obsolete, are assessed collectively and a provision
applied according to the inventory type and the degree of ageing or obsolescence, based on historical selling prices.

Impairment of non-financial assets

An asset is impaired if its carrying amount exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset
is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and value in use. Net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an
asset in an arm’s length transaction. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from
the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. An assessment is made at each statement
of financial position date to determine whether there is objective evidence that an asset may be impaired. If such evidence
exists, any impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

Impairment of property and equipment

A decline in the value of property and equipment could have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements. Management assesses the impairment of property and equipment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Factors that are considered important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:

e significant decline in the market value beyond that which would be expected from the passage of time or normal
use;

e significant changes in the technology and regulatory environments; and

e evidence from internal reporting which indicates that the economic performance of the asset is, or will be, worse
than expected.

Useful lives of property and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives of its equipment for calculating depreciation. This
estimate is determined after considering the expected usage of the asset or physical wear and tear. Management reviews
the residual value and useful lives annually and future depreciation charge would be adjusted where the management
believes the useful lives differ from previous estimates.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with finite and indefinite useful life

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that an intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing
the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the consolidated statement of income as the expense category
that is consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

The Group determines whether goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life are impaired at least on an annual
basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Impairment of an associate

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an additional
impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its associates. The Group determines at each reporting date whether there
is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and
recognises the loss as “Impairment loss of investment in associate” in the consolidated statement of income.
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4 NET INVESTMENT INCOME
2018 2017
KD KD
Interest income 224,948 238,375
Unrealised gain from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,039 -
Dividend income 293,054 274,668
519,041 513,043
5 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year (excluding treasury shares). Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year (excluding treasury
shares) plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The Parent Company did not have any diluted shares as at 31 December.
The information necessary to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share based on the weighted average number of
shares outstanding, less treasury shares, during the year is as follows:

2018 2017
Profit for the year (KD) 3,415,915 3,459,797
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year (excluding
treasury shares) 400,991,834 400,991,834

Basic and diluted earnings per share 8.52 fils 8.63 fils
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Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2018
8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Freehold land  Buildings Total
KD KD KD

Cost:

At 1 January 2018 3,474,033 1,365,336 4,839,369

Additions - 39,000 39,000
At 31 December 2018 3,474,033 1,404,336 4,878,369
Depreciation:

At 1 January 2018 - 289,359 289,359
Charge for the year - 38,569 38,569
At 31 December 2018 - 327,928 327,928
Net carrying amount:

At 31 December 2018 3,474,033 1,076,408 4,550,441
Cost:

At 1 January 2017 3,474,033 1,219,110 4,693,143
Additions = 146,226 146,226
At 31 December 2017 3,474,033 1,365,336 4,839,369
Depreciation:

At 1 January 2017 - 259,160 259,160
Charge for the year - 30,199 30,199
At 31 December 2017 - 289,359 289,359
Net carrying amount:

At 31 December 2017 3,474,033 1,075,977 4,550,010

* As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the investment properties amounted to KD 5,347,000 (2017: KD 5,408,000).

The fair value of the investment properties has been determined based on valuations obtained from two independent
valuers, who are an industry specialised in valuing these types of investment properties, one of these valuers is a local
bank.

Both valuators have used the following method:
» Developed properties which generate rental income have been valued using the income capitalisation approach
assuming full capacity of the property.

All investment properties are considered under level 3 for the fair value hierarchy, and there were no transfers between
level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements and no transfer into and out of level 3 fair value measurements.

Investment properties with total amount of KD 2,661,473 (2017: KD 2,661,473) is registered in thc name of a related
party (Note 19), which confirmed in writing that the Group has the beneficial ownership of those properties.

9 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group disposed its shares in United Foodstuff Industries Group Company

K.S.C. (Closed) to a related party for a consideration of KD 2,107,640. Accordingly, the Group has recognized a gain
from sale of the associate of KD 518,858 in the consolidated statement of income (Note 19).



Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.5.C.P. and 1ts dubsiaiary
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2018
10 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
2018 2017
KD KD
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Managed portfolio (local quoted equity securities) 994,372 -
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
Local unquoted securitics 3,789,343 6,457,161
Local quoted securities 4,039,536 -
Managed portfolio (local quoted equity securities) 1,903,874 125,863
Managed portfolio (local unquoted equity securities) 14,187,550 15,007,328

23,920,303 21,590,352

Total other financial assets 24,914,675 21,590,352

As at 31 December 2018, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income amounting to KD 16,091,964
(2017: KD 15,133,191) are managed by a related party (Note 19).

As at 31 December 2018, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income amounting to KD 21,601,659
(2017: KD 18,454,810) are in related party entities (Note 19).

Hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments by valuation technique are presented in
Note 24.

11 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS
2018 2017
KD KD
Trade receivables 2,824,231 4,485,402
Advance payment for purchase investment properties 2,544,520 4,653,331
Prepaid expenses 306,285 305,431
Other receivables 205,914 194,250

5,880,950 9,638,414

As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables of KD 2,300,008 (2017: KD 1,685,839) were impaired and fully provided for.

Movements in the allowance for impairment of trade receivables were as follows:

2018 2017
KD KD
Opening balance 1,685,839 502,286
Opening balance adjustment based on lifetime ECL (Note 2.2.1) - 162,343
Charge for the year - 1,020,504
Charge for the year based on lifetime ECL 614,169 706

2,300,008 1,685,839



Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2018

11 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)
The aging of unimpaired trade receivables at 31 December is as follows:

Past due but not impaired

Total 0— 90 days 91 -180day 181-270day 271-360day >360 days
KD KD KD KD KD KD
2018 3,438,400 2,274,470 943,141 120,812 99,977 -
2017 4,648,451 3,089,142 1,207,177 141,109 37,675 173,348

Receivables which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

12 CASH, BANK BALANCES AND TERM DEPOSITS

Cash, bank balances and term deposits included in the consolidated statement of cash flows include the following
consolidated statement of financial position amounts:

2018 2017
KD KD
Cash 1,729 2,093
Bank balances 4,812,322 3,987,120
Term deposits 12,000,000 24,050,000
16,814,051 28,039,213
Term deposits (maturity after 3 months from the inception date) (10,000,000)  (9,000,000)

6,814,051 19,039,213

Term deposits are placed with loca) hanks denominated in KD and carry an effective interest rate of 2.55% (2017: 1.85 5%)
per annum,

Changes in liabilities from financing activities:

Cash flows 31 December

1 January 2018  inflow/(outflow) 2018
KD KD KD
Current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 17,821,485 (17,821,485)
Total liabilities from financing activities 17,821,485 (17,821,485) -
13 SHARE CAPITAL, CASH DIVIDEND AND BONUS SHARES

Authorised, issued and fully paid

2018 2017
KD KD
404,707,581 shares (2017: 404,707,581) of 100 fils paid in cash and issue of bonus

shares 40,470,758 40,470,758

Cash dividend, bonus shares and Directors’ remuneration

The Annual General Assembly Meeting held on 22 April 2018, approved a distribution of 5% cash dividend of the nominal
value of shares, by 5 fils per share for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 5 fils). In addition, the Annual General
Assembly approved directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2017 of KD 55,000 (2015: 50,000).



Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2018

13 SHARE CAPITAL, CASH DIVIDEND AND BONUS SHARES (continued)

Cash dividend, bonus shares and Directors’ remuneration (continued) ,
The Board of Directors of the Group has proposed directors’ remuneration of KD 60,000 (2017: KD 55,000), which 15
within the amount permissible under local regulations and are subject to approval by annual Ordinary General Assembly
Meeting of the Group’s shareholders.

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company has proposed a distribution of 5% cash dividends of the nominal value of
shares, by 5 fils per share for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: 5 fils) and is subject to approval by Annual
Ordinary General Assembly Meeting of the Parent Company’s shareholders.

14 STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with the Companies’ Law, and the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of
Association, a minimum of 10% of the profit for the year before contribution to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and Directors’
remuneration shall be transferred to the statutory reserve based on the recommendation of the Parent Company’s board
of directors. The annual general assembly of the Parent Company may resolve to discontinue such transfer when the
reserve exceeds 50% of the issued share capital. The reserve may only be used to offset losses or enable the payment of
a dividend up to 5% of paid-up share capital in years when profit is not sufficient for the payment of such dividend due
to absence of distributable reserves. Any amounts deducted from the reserve shall be refunded when the profits in the
following years suffice, unless such reserve exceeds 50% of the issued share capital.

15 VOLUNTARY RESERVE

In accordance with the Companies’ Law, and the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of
Association, a maximum of 10% of the profit for the year before contribution to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and Directors’
remuneration is transferred to voluntary reserve. The Annual General Assembly of shareholders may, upon a
recommendation by the Board of Directors, resolve to discontinue such annual transfers.

16 TREASURY SHARES
2018 2017
Number of treasury shares 3,715,747 3,715,747
Percentage of ownership 0.92% 0.92%
Market value (KD) 427,311 408,732
Reserves equivalent to the cost of the treasury shares held are not available for distribution.
17 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS
2018 2017
KD KD
Trade payables 13,484,198 9,494,106
Accrued expenses 1,582,276 1,600,021
Dividend payables 2,359,763 1,669,755
Advances from customers 1,383,090 1,208,069

18,809,327 13,971,951

Trade payable amounting to KD 12,354,638 (2017: 8,667,009) are due to a related party (Note 19).

18 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
2018 2017
KD KD
Letters of guarantee 5,969,281 5,435,223

Capital commitments 1,456,861 2,587,114




Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2018

18 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (continued)

The Group has entered into several lease arrangements, mainly for renting of land over which fuel stations are constructed.
The future minimum lease payments under the non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows:

2018 2017
KD KD
Not later than one year 1,166,257 1,051,365
After one year and not later than five years 2,043,411 1,866,432
3,209,668 2,917,797
19 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties represent i.e. major shareholders, associates, directors and key management personnel of the Group, and
entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these
transactions are approved by the management and board of directors.

Transactions with related parties included in the consolidated statement of income are as follows:

Entities under Major 2018 2017
common control  shareholder Total Total
KD KD KD KD
Cost of sales (purchase of fuel) - 143,855,393 143,855,393 137,854,788
Operating expenses 952,348 - 952,348 965,628
Administrative expenses 852,603 - 852,603 1,169,987
Gain from sale of an associate 518,858 - 518,858 -

Balances with related parties included in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

Entities under Major 2018 2017
common control  shareholder Total Total
KD KD KD KD
Accounts receivable and prepayments* 1,739,262 - 1,739,262 4,150,716
Accounts payable and accruals* 12,354,638 - 12,354,638 8,667,009
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 21,601,659 - 21,601,659 18,454,810

Investment properties with total amount of KD 2,661,473 (2017: KD 2,661,473) is registered in the name of related party
(Note 8), which confirmed in writing that the Group has the beneficial ownership of those properties.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income amounting to KD 16,091,964 (2017: KD 15,133,191) are
managed by a related party (Note 10).

* Amounts due to/from Entities under common control that are interest free and due within one year from the reporting date.

2018 2017
KD KD
Key management compensation
Short-term benefits 346,179 478,864
Employees’ end of service benefits 26,986 35,587

373,165 514,451
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2018

20 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on their products and services, and has two

reportable operating segments as follows:

- Fuel marketing and other related services — represents the sale of fuel and other related services arising from fuel

stations.

- Investment operations — represents investment in managed portfolio, short-term money market placements and real

estate.

31 December 2018

Segment revenue
Depreciation and amortization

Segment results

31 December 2017
Segment revenue
Depreciation and amortization

Segment results

Segment assets as at 31 December 2018

Segment liabilities as at 31 December
2018

Segment assets as at 31 December 2017

Segment liabilities as at 31 December
2017

Fuel marketing
and other related  Investment
services operations Unallocated Total
KD KD KD KD
160,194,061 1,050,206 - 161,244,267
1,925,161 38,569 78,161 2,041,891
5,094,315 1,050,206 (2,728,606) 3,415,915
Fuel marketing
and other related Investment
services operations Unallocated Total
KD KD KD KD
153,262,753 1,234,726 - 154,497,479
1,705,577 30,201 75,835 1,811,613
5,668,880 1,234,726 (3,443,809) 3,459,797
Fuel marketing
and other related  Investment
services operations Unallocated Total
KD KD KD KD
46,191,359 41,465,116 - 87,656,475
18,648,635 o 1,014,994 19,663,629
46,850,344 51,960,399 - 98,810,743
13,810,149 17,821,485 922,244 32,553,878

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Risk is inherent in the Group’s activities but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and
monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Group’s continuing
profitability and each individual within the Group is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her
responsibilities. The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The independent risk control process
does not include business risks such as changes in the environment, technology and industry. The Group’s policy is to
monitor those business risks through Group’s strategic planning process. No changes were made in the risk management

objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.



Al Soor Fuel Marketing Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2018

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

211 Creditrisk
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument leading to a financial
Joss. Financial assets subject to credit risk consist principally of bank balances, fixed deposits and accounts receivable.

The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. The Group’s exposure are continuously
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.

Maximum exposure to credit risk

The Group’s exposure to credit risk from bank balances, cash with a portfolio manager, fixed deposits and accounts
receivable arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these
instruments. Where financial instruments are recorded at fair value, it represents the current maximum credit risk exposure
but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values. The maximum exposure
is the carrying amount as described in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

2018 2017
KD KD
Cash, bank balances and term deposits (Note 12) 16,812,322 28,037,120
Trade and other receivables (Note 11) 3,030,145 4,679,652

19,842,467 32,716,772

Risk concentration of maximum exposure to credit risk

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same
geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be
similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity
of the Group’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographic location.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries. Ongoing credit evaluation is
performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable. Concentration of credit risk is represented by one major
customer representing 38% (2017: 32%) of the trade receivables balance.

212 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with
financial instruments. To manage this risk, the Group periodically assess the financial viability of the receivables and ensures
that adequate bank facilities are available.

The management has built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group’s short
and medium funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
cash and cash equivalents and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets.

All the financial liabilities of the Group are due within one year from the consolidated statement of financial position
date.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted
payments:

Within 3012
3 months months Total
KD KD KD
2018
Accounts payable and accruals (excluding advances from customers) 15,894,810 1,531,426 17,426,236

15,894,810 1,531,426 17,426,236
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At 31 December 2018
21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
21.2  Liquidity risk (continued)
Within 31012
3 months months Total
KD KD KD
2017
Accounts payable and accruals (excluding advances from customers) 11,242,551 1,521,331 12,763,882
Term loan 18,029,543 - 18,029,543
29,272,094 1,521,331 30,793,425

21.3  Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprises of foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk. The sensitivity
analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 December in 2018 and 2017.

21.3.1 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily
to the Group’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a different currency from the Group’s
presentation currency).

At the reporting date, the Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as majority of the assets and liabilities are
denominated in Kuwaiti Dinars.

21.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to
the Company’s term loan obligation with fixed interest rates.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on its interest bearing assets and liabilities (short term deposit, term loan).

The sensitivity of the consolidated statement of income is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the Group’s
profit, based on fixed interest rates and financial liabilities held at 31 December. The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity of the consolidated statement of income to reasonably possible changes in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant.

Effect on profit
Increase for the year
in basis points KD
2018 +100 120,000
2017 +100 62,285

21.3.3 Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices
and the value of individual stocks. The Group is exposed to equity price risk on its investments held at fair value through
profit or loss. The Group manages this risk through diversification of investments in terms of industry concentration.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the consolidated statement of income to reasonably possible changes
inequity prices, with all other variables held constant.

Market indices Increase/decrease Effect on Effect on profit

in stock prices ocCI Jfor the year
(%) KD KD

2018
Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income Kuwait +5 + 234,619 -
Financial assets held at fair value through

profit or loss Kuwait +5 - + 938,069
2017

Financial assets held at fair value through profit
or loss Kuwait +5 + 5492 -
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22 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise sharcholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Capital comprises of share capital, statutory reserve, voluntary reserve, treasury shares cumulative change in fair value
reserve and retained earnings and is measured at KD 67,992,846 as at 31 December 2018 (2017: KD 66,256,865).

23 MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s assets and liabilities. The maturity profile of, accounts
receivable and prepayments, accounts payable and accruals at the year-end is based on contractual repayment
arrangements. The maturity profile for the remaining assets and liabilities is determined based on the management
estimate of liquidation of those assets.

Within 31012 1te5
3 months months years Total
31 December 2018 KD KD KD KD
Assets
Property and equipment - - 22,671,578 22,671,578
Intangible assets = - 12,235,736 12,235,736
Investment properties - - 4,550,441 4,550,441

Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income - i 23,920,303 23,920,303

Inventories - 589,044 - 589,044
Accounts receivable and prepayments 2,750,434 3,130,516 5,880,950
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 994,372 - 994,372
Cash, bank balances and term deposits 6,814,051 10,000,000 - 16,814,051
TOTAL ASSETS 9,564,485 14,713,932 63,378,058 87,656,475
Liabilities
Employees end of service benefits - - 854,302 854,302
Accounts payable and accruals 15,894,810 2,914,517 - 18,809,327
TOTAL LIABILITIES 15,894,810 2,914,517 854,302 19,663,629
Within 3012 1t05

3 months months years Total
31 December 2017 KD KD KD KD
Assets
Property and equipment - - 19,410,690 19,410,690
Intangible assets - - 12,929,500 12,929,500
Investment properties - - 4,550,010 4,550,010
Investment in associates - - 1,927,375 1,927,375

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income E 21,590,352 21,590,352

725,189

Inventories - 725,189
Accounts receivable and prepayments 4,357,583 5,280,831 - 9,638,414
Cash, bank balances and term deposits 19,039,213 9,000,000 - 28,039,213
TOTAL ASSETS 23,396,796 15,006,020 60,407,927 98,810,743
Liabilities

Employees end of service benefits - - 760,442 760,442
Accounts payable and accruals 11,242,551 2,729,400 - 13,971,951
Term loans 17,821,485 - - 17,821,485

TOTAL LIABILITIES 29,064,036 2,729,400 760,442 32,553,878
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24 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments comprise of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Financial assets consist of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, accounts receivable and prepayments and cash, bank balances and term deposits. Financial

liabilities consist of accounts payable and accruals and term loans.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments by
valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in an active market for identical assets and liabilities;

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are abservable,
either directly or indirectly;

Level 3: other techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are not based on
observable market data.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 Level 3 Total
2018 KD KD KD
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
Managed portfolio (local quoted equity securities) 994,372 - 994,372
994,372 - 994,372

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Local unquoted securities - 3,789,343 3,789,343
Local quoted securities 4,039,536 - 4,039,536
Managed portfolio (local quoted equity securities) 1,903,874 1,903,874

14,187,550 14,187,550
5,943,410 17,976,893 23,920,303

Managed portfolio (local unquoted equity securities)

Level 1 Level 3 Total
2017 KD KD KD

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Local unquoted securities -
Managed portfolio (local quoted equity securities) 125,863
Managed portfolio (local unquoted equity securities) -

6,457,161 6,457,161
- 125,863
15,007,328 15,007,328

125,863 21,464,489 21,590,352

The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing amount of level 3 financial assets which are recorded
at fair value.

Gain
Reclassification  recorded in Net As at
As at due to early other purchases, 31
1January  adoption of  comprehensive (sales) and Transfer to December
2018 IFRS 9 income settlements Level 1* 2018
KD KD KD KD KD KD
Financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
Local unquoted securities 6,457,161 - (946,885) 5,000 (1,725,933) 3,789,343
Managed portfolio (local
unquoted equity

securities) 15,007,328 - (3,500,404) 2,680,626 - 14,187,550
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24 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Gain
Reclassification  recorded in Net
4ds at due to early other purchases,
1January  adoptionof  comprehensive (sales) and Transfer from
2017 IFRS 9 income settlements Level 1**
KD KD KD KD KD
Financial assets at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
Local unquoted securities - 5,810,911 646,250 - -
Managed portfolio (local
unquoted equity
securities) - 13,270,828 412,473 152,499 1,171,528

As at
31
December
2017
KD

6,457,161

15,007,328

* During the current year, Kuwait Boursa announced listing of one of the equity securities on the Kuwait stock market.

Accordingly, the Group transferred the equity investment of KD 1,725,933 from level 3 to level 1.

** On September 2017, Kuwait Boursa announced delisting of one of the equity securities from the Kuwait stock market.

Accordingly, the Group transferred the equity investment of KD 1,171,528 from level 1 to level 3.

25 COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Certain prior year amounts have been re-classified to conform to the current year’s presentation of the consolidated financial

statements with no effect on previously reported profit or equity.

As previously Effect of After
31 December 2017 reported reclassification  reclassification
KD KD KD
Consolidated statement of financial position
Investment properties 4,392,672 157,338 4,550,010
Accounts receivable and prepayments 9,795,752 (157,338) 9,638,414



63



64



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SOOR FUEL MARKETING co. K.S.C.P



}‘ INTRODUCTION

Corporate governance principles reflect the rules, regulations and procedures which optimize protection and equilibrium
among interests of companies, shareholders and the stakeholders. The main target beyond implementation of governance
rules is represented in enabling the company to meet shareholders™ objectives in a manner which enhances shareholders’
confidence in the company's efficient performance and ability to face crises.

Corporate governance principles regulate the methodology pertinent to decision-making at the company and create trans-
parent and sound decisions. The most important corporate rule is embodied in protection of shareholders™ equity and sep-
aration of authority between Executive management — which manages the company’s affairs and the Board of Directors
which prepares and review plans and policies in that company. As such, those principles are an additional assurance which
creates a sense of confidence in dealing with such company. Furthermore, they enable shareholders and stakeholders to
manage the company effectively.

On 27 June 2013, Capital Market Authority made its decision no. 25/2013 whereby corporate governance rules have been
issued under CMA's supervision. Corporate governance rules have been issued as provided for in Article (40) Executive
Regulation, Law 7/2010 in connection with the creation of CMA & organization of securities activity where it stipulates that
CMA shall determine a particular regulation for governance. In addition, terms and provisions of Article 217, Law 25/2012
which enacts Companies’ Act, as amended, which indicates as follows: “The relevant regulatory authorities shall determine
governance rules for the companies, governed by them, so as to optimize protection and balance between company's man-
agement interests and its shareholders as well as the stakeholders. Also, such law sets forth the requirements that shall be
met by Board of Directors’ s independent members.

Corporate governance principles have been revised by Decree 48/2015 issued on 30 June 2015 noting that such decree
was reenacted in part 15, executive regulation, Law 7/2010 in connection with creation of CMA and organization of securi-
ties activity. Such rules were applied on 30 June 2016.

Corporate governance principles comprise a package of mainstays and requirements, on which deliberate management
is based, as well as the methodology for applying such rules and principles. Such methodology determines benchmarks
related to governance principles’ application mechanism including a balanced Board of Directors structure together with
independent members and non-executive members, determination of the liabilities and roles entrusted to both the Board of
Directors and the Executive management in addition to stress on fairness of financial reports and the necessity for providing
a good management of risks, internal controls, attention and promotion of professional conduct and ethical values together
with the importance to provide mechanisms pertaining to disclosure, transparency, shareholder equity protection, realiza-
tion of stakeholders™ role, overcoming conflict of interests, performance improvement and stress on the social significance
shouldered by companies.

Pursuant to the positive steps adopted by CMA, through the regulations, ordinances and decisions via which CMA attempts
to improve business environment, transparency and protect shareholder equity, SOOR always exerts its utmost efforts
depending on an integral staff who are dedicated to adherence to all laws and decrees in professional and timely manner
as required.

First Rule: Building a Balanced Structure of the Board of Directors

Board of Directors™ decisions have a remarkable effect on the company’s performance and proper financial position. Hence,
SOOR's Board of Directors comprises a sufficient number of members (9 members) for constitution of the required number
of the Board committees as per corporate governance principles and regulations. When the Board of Directors was consti-
tuted, various experiences and competent skills have been taken into consideration in a manner which optimizes decision
making. In addition, non-executive members represent the Board of Directors majority. Also, the Board of Directors includes
one independent member.
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1- Board of Directors Composition:

Name g’l:rr:;?:é Academic Degrees Practical Expertise é\:gg:ilgra‘tg)a%
Mr. Tarif Mohammed Al-Awadi Non-executive | Bachelor of Business Administration | 21 years, Business Administration 02/06/2016
Mr. Talal Ahmed Al-Khars Executive Bachelor of Science 21 years, Business Administration 02/06/2016
and Development
Mr. Jaber Mohammed Al-Hajeri Independent High School Diploma 31 years, Media Field 02/06/2016
Sheikh/ Faisal Al-Jaber Al-Sabah | Non-executive | Bachelor of Business and Accounting 26 years, Oil Sector 30/10/2017
20 years, Management of
Mr. Essa Ibrahim Al-Mousa Non-executive Bachelor of Computer Science Computer Systems, IT and 02/06/2016
Engineering Services
M. Hani Fawwaz Abduriahman | Norvoxecutive | B2161rof Business Adminieration | 29 yeare, Financil invesiment | - 5106501
Mr. Meshaal Yagoub Al-Omar Non-executive Bachelor of Arts 18 years, Real Estate Sector 02/06/2016
Mr. Abdulwahab Al-Mansouri Non-executive Bachelor of Law 24 years, Field of Law 30/11/2016
Mrs. Ebtihaj Ibrahim Al-Fouzan Non-executive | Bachelor of Business Administration | 29 years, Business Administration 04/03/2018
Mr. Abdulaziz Malek Al-Ali Non-executive Bachelor of Law 10 years, Field of Law 11/11/2018
Mr. Ehab Jameel Ishaq Board Secretary Ba;;el\l/(l);;;?g:gr::;ce 24 years, Accounting Field 10/03/2016
2- Board of Directors’ Meetings:
. Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting No. Of
Name Title 1 dated 2 dated 3 dated 4 dated 5 dated 6 dated meetings
4/3/2018 14/3/2018 14/5/2018 12/8/2018 | 11/11/2018 | 27/12/2018
Mr. Tarif Mohammed Al-Awadi Chairman v v v v v v 6
Mr. Talal Ahmed Al-Khars Deputy Chairman |, v v v x v 5
and CEO

Sheikh/ Faisal Al-Jaber Al-Sabah Board Member X v v v v v 5
Mr. Essa Ibrahim Al-Mousa Board Member v v v v v v 6
Mr. Hani Fawwaz Abdulrahman Board Member v v v v v v 6
Mr. Meshaal Yagoub Al-Omar Board Member v v X v v 4 5
Mr. Abdulwahab Al Mansouri Board Member v v v X 3
Mrs. Ebtihaj Ibrahim Al-Fouzan Board Member v v v X X X 3
Mr. Jaber Mohammed Al-Hajeri Board Member v v v v v v 6
Mr. Abdulaziz Malek Al-Ali Board Member v X 1
Mr. Ehab Jameel Ishaq Board Member X v v v v v 5

+ Mrs. Ebtihaj Ibrahim Al-Fouzan has been appointed as a representative of Kuwait Petroleum Corporation in SOOR
Fuel Marketing Company’s Board of Directors instead of Mr. Khalid Saleh Al-Asousi as per the letter received from

KPC on 15/01/2018.

+ Mr. Abdulaziz Malek Al-Ali has been appointed as a representative of International Business Trading Company in
SOOR Fuel Marketing Company’s Board of Directors instead of Mr. Abdulwahab Abdullah Al-Mansouri on 11/11/2018.

3- Recording, Coordination and Retaining Board of Directors’ Minutes of Meetings.
+ The company maintains an annual record, in connection with Board of Directors meetings, comprising minutes under serial
numbers during the year in which the meeting was held as well as meeting's venue, date, staring time and ending time. In
addition, copies of all documents, which have been discussed during meeting, are attached.
Secretary of the Board namely MR. EHAB ISHAQ — Vice President of Finance & Accounts Department — undertakes
the duties entrusted to him by virtue of governance principles. Such duties are outlined in preparation for Board of
Directors meetings and sending necessary documents and invitations within 3 days prior to the Board of Directors’
meeting. Moreover, the Board Secre tary registers all decrees and discussions made among members, records
members’ voting results on decrees, coordinates and maintain all documents which have been discussed during

meetings.

Second Rule: Establish Appropriate Roles & Responsibilities
+ SOOR's Board of Directors has approved the Board of Directors’ Charter. The charter regulates the details of all roles,
powers and authorities assigned to both the Board of Directors and the Executive management noting that this

6/




regulation reflects separation between the duties and powers entrusted to the Board of Directors and those assigned

to the executive management in a manner which ensures the entire independence and efficiency for all parties.

Fur ther, the Board of Directors’s liabilities are clearly indicated in SOOR's articles of association with observation of the
general assembly’s roles.

1- Board of Directors Roles & Responsibilities:-

Approves company's important strategies, plans and policies.

Approves company's capital structure and financial targets.

Sets company's overall strategies as well as the main business plans, reviews and direct the same.

Participates in achieving SOOR's profits.

Supervises SOOR's main capital expenditures, possession of assets and disposal thereof.

Ensures compliance with policies and procedures in respect of adherence to applicable rules and regulations through
support by both Audit Committee and Risk Committee affiliated to the Board of Directors.

Assumes liability toward shareholders and bears responsibility before the relevant stakeholders.

Monitors and supervises the executive management's performance.

Monitors performance of each member at the Board of Directors and the executive management based on the key
performance indicators determined by support from Nomination & Remunerating Committee.

Approves SOOR governance report which shall be recited at the general assembly. Such report shall include
company’s full governance requirements and procedures and compliance therewith.

Determines SOOR governance framework without contradiction to CMA’s corporate provisions and principles.
Supervises such framework in general, monitors its efficiency and modifies it when necessary.

Ensures accuracy and authenticity of the data and information which shall be disclosed in conformity to disclosure and
trans parency policies and bylaws.

Ensures effective discussion of all principal issues by the Board of Directors in a timely manner.

Supports and assists the executive management.

Represents SOOR toward other parties as contemplated in SOOR's articles of association.

Encourages all Board of Directors members to participate fully and effectively in running the Board of Directors’ affairs
so that the Board of Directors can take actions in favor of SOOR.

Ensures the actual communication with shareholders and forwards their opinions to the Board of Directors.

Promotes positive relations and effective participation among both the Board of Directors and the executive
management.

Creates positive criticism attitudes regarding the issues which are exposed to different points of view among Board of
Directors members.

Implements SOOR policies, regulations and internal systems approved by the Board of Directors.

Executes the annual strategies and plans approved by the Board of Directors.

Prepares the periodical reports related to the progress accomplished in company’s activities in view of SOOR's
strategic plans and targets.

Administers the daily tasks and run activity in addition to optimal management of SOOR’s resources, profit
maximization and expenditure reduction as per company’s goals and strategies.

Participates effectively in promoting and developing ethical value attitudes at SOOR.

Prepares Internal Control Review & Risk Management System to ensure the effectiveness as well as adequacy

of such systems and abide by risk tolerance approved by the Board of Directors.

Upgrade the IT infrastructure so as to generate data and necessary information required for decision making pursuant
to SOOR expansion strategy and needs.

Prepares key performance indicators for SOOR’s employees and periodically evaluates the duties accomplished by
them.

Formulates a clear action mechanism in respect of monitoring the regulatory rules and regulations pertaining to SOOR
activities in order to ensure implementation and compliance therewith.

2 - Board of Directors Achievements During 2018:-

Updated and approved the Board of Directors’ charter.

Updated and approved Board of Directors committees™ charters including Audit Committee, Risk Committee as
well as Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

Approved SOOR's organizational structure based on governance principles and CMA's amendments.
Authorized the annual estimated balance sheet and approved periodical and annual financial statements of year
2018.

Followed up committees achievements and ensured on such committees™ responsibilities and powers.
Approved Risk Assessment mechanism, emphasized on the necessity of such mechanism and determined the
actions to be taken to mitigate the negative impacts of such risks on SOOR's financial position.

Approved the risk tolerance level acceptable to SOOR and ensured the importance of the same to SOOR's Risk
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Management and internal control.

Discussed a study conducted by the Risk Management Department on the nature of SOOR's current and potential
risks in addition rendering the solutions proposed to mitigate the adverse impacts created by such risks.

Monitored performance of each Board of Directors member as per the key performance indicators determined by
support from Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

3- Board of Directors Committees

Formation Date: 20/06/2016.
Committee Tenure: Expires when the Board of Directors’s term comes to its end.

Committee Members Title Ranking

Mr. Hani Fawwaz Abdulrahman Committee Chairman Non-executive member

Mr. Essa lbrahim Al-Moussa Committee Member Non-executive member

Mr. Jaber Mohammed Al-Hajeri Committee Member Independent member

Number of meetings held in 2018: 10 meetings

0

The Audit Committee met four times with the external auditor to review periodical and annual financial statements before they
being forwarded to the Board of Directors where the Audit Committee demonstrated its opinion and recommendation to the
Board of Directors for ensuring fairness, transparency and authenticity of financial statements as well as SOORs internal
controls noting that SOOR held its periodical meetings during which financial reports have been perused. The Audit Committee
forwarded its recommendations to the Board of Directors for approval.

The Audit Committee monitored the works of the external auditorand ensured that such auditors have never provided services
to SOOR other than those required for audit work.

Reviewed external auditor's comments on SOOR financial reports and monitored what have been accomplished in this regard.
Reviewed audit and governance reports before they were forwarded to general assembly.

Conducted technical supervision over SOOR's internal audit unit provided by (Al-Aiban & Al-Qatami Company, a Member of
Grant Thornton International) so as to ensure that such unit had undertaken the duties and assignments determined by the
Board of Directors.

Forwarded necessary recommendations to the Board of Directors in connection with appointment, reappointment or change
of external auditor or determination of his fees.

Reviewed conclusions of internal audit reports and ensured that valid actions had been taken regarding the comments set forth
in such reports.

Reviewed the Internal Controls Review Report.

The Audit Committee met four times with the internal auditor to monitor internal audits at SOOR and reviewed audit reports
pertinent to SOOR various departments.

Constitution Date: 20/06/2016
Committee Tenure: Expires when the Board of Directors™ s term comes to its end.

Member Name Title Ranking

Mr. Hani Fawwaz Abdulrahman

Committee Chairman

Non-executive member

Mr. Talal Ahmad Al-Khars

Committee Member

Non-executive member

Mr. Jaber Mohammed Al-Hajeri

Committee Member

Independent member

Number of meetings held in 2018: 4 meetings

Risk Management Committee’s Assignments & Achievements during the year 2018

Reviewed and approved the Risk Assessment mechanism to measure different types of risks - to which the company may be
exposed — in order to mitigate the expected adverse impacts as far as possible.

Reviewed and approved a study conducted by the Risk Department on the nature of the risks which is surrounded SOOR in
addition to evaluation and measurement of such risks as well as submission of expected solutions to encounter such adverse
impacts.

Reviewed and approved risk appetite report prepared by Risk Management Department in order for the Board of Directors to
approve and determine risk level acceptable to SOOR.

Updated risk management's policies and procedures.

Updated the risk register.

Prepared process mapping to facilitate potential risk determination process at SOOR various departments.
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+ Formation Date: 20/06/2016
+ Committee Tenure: Expires when the Board of Directors’s term comes to its end.

Committee Member Title Ranking
Mr. Meshaal Yaqoub Al-Omar Committee Chairman Non-executive member
Mr. Talal Ahmad Al-Khars Committee Member Non-executive member
Mr. Jaber Mohammed Al-Hajeri Committee Member Independent member

Number of meetings held in 2018: 2 meetings

* Prepared an annual detailed report on all remunerations granted to Board of Directors members and the executive management
in 2017. Further, the committee ensured that the report had been forwarded to general assembly for approval.

+ The committee prepared a report on key performance indicators for overall evaluation by the Board of Directors as well as par
ticipation of each Board of Directors member and each committee in addition to appraisal of the executive management.

+ The committee prepared job descriptions of each one of the Board of Directors™ executive, non-executive and independent
members.

4- Requirements’ Application Method which allows Board of Directors members to obtain

information and data accurately and in a timely manner:-

+ Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer periodically forwards SOOR latest achievements to the Board of Directors.

+ Further, SOOR, through the Board’s Secretary, provides to board members accurate and clear information and data in order to
be able to undertake and take over their assignments and duties effectively and actively.

+ SOOR ensures that all prepared reports are extremely valid and precise and that they are furnished to board members at proper
time for facilitating the process though which decisions are timely made.

Third Rule:Recruit Highly Qualified Candidates for Members of the Board of Directors and the
Executive Management.

1- Nomination & Remuneration Committee:-

+ SOOR has a Nomination & Remuneration Committee affiliated to Board of Directors. The committee comprises of three board
members including one independent member. Further, its chairman is a board non-executive member. The board has deter-
mined its membership tenure and operation method in addition to its powers and responsibilities in the committee’s charter
approved by the board.

+ Nomination mechanism includes progressive selection of competent board and executive management members. Also, SOOR
has approved a remuneration mechanism for maintaining efficient employees and attraction of new competent persons in
addition to assistance for achieving SOOR goals and progress. Remuneration system — pertaining to executive management - is
based on key performance indicators.

+ Moreover, the committee has prepared KPI Report for overall evaluation of the Board of Directors as well as participation by
each board member and each of the board ad hoc committees in addition to appraisal of executive management performance.

2- Report on remunerations granted to Board Members & Executive Management:-

An annual detailed report — on all remunerations — either as sums or benefits- granted to board members and executive
managements — has been prepared for year 2018 in addition to making sure that the report will be forwarded to SOOR
general assembly for approval and recitation by the Board’s Chairman.

Fourth Rule: Ensured Integrity of Financial Reports

1- Written Undertakings by Board of Directors & Executive Management on Soundness & Integrity of Prepared
Financial Reports:-

Integrity and fairness of SOOR's financial statements are regarded as an important indicator to the company's truthfulness and
credibility in presenting its financial position, a matter which makes shareholders and investors more confident in the statements
and information provided and disclosed by the company to its stakeholders. Executive management undertakes in writing to Board
of Directors that the company's financial reports are validly and fairly presented and to approach all financial sides related to
SOOR including operational statements and outcomes. Besides, such reports are prepared as the recognized IFRSs. In addition,
the annual report — provided to shareholders by SOOR Board of Directors — includes a written undertaking of soundness and
integrity of all financial statements as well as the reports related to SOOR's business noting that the foregoing reports participate
in enhancing accountability of the executive management by the Board of Directors or of the board by shareholders.

2- Audit Committee Formation:-

SOOR has an audit committee which comprises three non-executive board members including one independent member. The
committee enjoys an absolute independence. It includes one member holding academic qualifications and practical expertise on
accounting and financial fields. The board has determined Audit Committees’ tenure and operation method. Moreover, it's powers
and responsibilities specified in the committee’s charter approved by the board. The committee held ten meetings in 2018 where
it discussed multiple subject matters within its powers and assignments. It further met periodically with SOOR's external and
internal auditors.
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3- Conflict between Audit Committee’s Recommendations & Board of Directors Decisions:-

In the event there is a conflict between the audit committee’s recommendations and Board of Directors™ decisions including —
when the Board of Directors rejects the committee’s recommendations, in connection with the external auditor and/ or internal
auditor, there shall be a detailed statement reflecting the recommendations and the reason or reasons for the board™ s deviation
from adherence to them. In 2018, there was no contradiction between the committee’s recommendations and Board of Directors’s
decisions.

4- Independence & Neutrality of External Auditor:

SOOR's general ordinary assembly reappointed the company's external auditor as per Board of Directors’s decision. Such
decision was based on the audit committee’s recommendations taking into consideration that the external auditor is listed in the
Capital Market Authority’s external Auditors register and meets all necessary requirements in this regard. Moreover, the exter-
nal auditor is independent from SOOR and its Board of Directors and that he neither undertakes additional works for SOOR nor
works included under audit processes nor tasks which affect neutrality and independence.

Moreover, the external auditor attended SOOR annual general ordinary assembly meeting where he recited the report
prepared by him to SOOR shareholders.

Fifth Rule: Applying Proper Systems of Risk Management and Internal Audit

1- Risk Management

SOOR has an independent risk management department affiliated to Risk Committee and Board of Directors. This department
mainly measures, monitors and evaluate all risks surrounding SOOR and finds solutions to mitigate the adverse impacts of such
risks.

2- Risk Management Committee

Risk Management Committee comprises of three board members including one independent member. The board has determined
its tenure and operation method. Moreover, Risk Management Committee’s powers and responsibilities are contemplated in the
committee’s charter approved by the board. Risk Management Committee held four meetings in 2018 where it discussed multiple
subject matters within its powers and assignments.

3- Internal Controls Review

SOOR's Internal controls include all systems which are adequate to maintain the company's financial integrity, statement accu-
racy and operation efficiency in all respects. Moreover, SOOR has taken into consideration the four eyes principles for internal
control process which represented in sound determination of powers and liabilities, the entire separation between assignments,
no conflict of interests, examination, double control and signature by the availability of an administrative and financial structure as
well as the procedures pertinent to SOOR in addition to IT systems prepared and designed based on separation of assignments
among the respective departments and positions.

4- Application of Independent Internal Audit Unit/ Office/ Department Requirements

SOOR has entered into a contract with an external firm to administer internal audit processes (Al-Aiban & Al-Qatami Company,
Member of Grant Thornton International) which has full independence and expanded technical expertise in auditing field. Such
firm has prepared audit reports for all activities and operations of SOOR including its various departments. Auditing reports include
comments and recommendations in addition to departments’ responses as well as business plans determined for taking neces-
sary actions according to forwarded recommendations. Such reports have been presented to Audit Committee.

Sixth Rule: Promote Code of Conduct and Ethical Standards

1- Code of Conduct which includes professional as well as ethical standards and restrictions:

SOOR has a code of conduct approved by the Board of Directors. This COC includes standards and restrictions pertinent to
professional conduct as well as ethical values. Through sound professional conduct and ethical values, we can enhance the
investor's confidence in SOOR integrity and financial statements accuracy noting that all Board of Directors and Executive man-
agement adhere to internal policies and regulations as well as statutory and regulatory which optimize interests of all parties
related to SOOR and shareholders in particular with no conflict of interests and with high transparency. In other words, SOOR's
governance framework includes compliance by all Board of Directors and executive management members with all laws and
regulations in a manner which meets interest of SOOR, shareholders and all related parties and not only the interest of a certain
group. Code of conduct stresses on each member and employee inside SOOR not to strive to achieve a personal interest to
himself or to a third party in addition to not using job influence for achieving a personal goal or benefit; moreover, each member in
SOOR shall avoid exploiting the company’s resources and assets to a personal benefit, but he shall rather use them to optimize
the company's targets. Above all, SOOR has determined a precise system which prohibits board members and employees from
using the information, obtained by them by virtue of their positions, to their own personal advantage. Also, they are prohibited
from disclosure of the company's information and data other than in the cases permitted by law. In brief, there shall be an obvious
separation between the interest of a Board Member and the interest of the company.

2- Proper Policies & Procedures for Limitation of Conflict of Interest:
SOOR's Board of Directors has determined the mechanism and policies required for limitation of interest conflict cases including
their correction methods as a part of the company's governance framework with observation of Companies Law.
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Seventh Rule: Accurate Disclosure and Transparency in the Right Time

1- Mechanisms of Precise Transparent Presentation and Disclosure which determine disclosure's respects,
fields and issues:

Precise disclosure is deemed one of the main advantages and methods to monitor the company's operations and evaluate its
performance. This leads shareholders and investors to be aware of the company’s structures and activities as well as the policies
adopted by the company in addition to appraisal of the company's performance in connection with ethical standards. Board of
Directors has determined, within the companys governance framework, an approved policy for accurate and transparent pre-
sentation and disclosure which reflects the sides, fields and issues pertinent to disclosure noting that the Board of Directors is
concerned with periodical review of disclosure and transparency mechanisms and systems applicable at the company.

2- Board of Directors & Executive Management's Disclosure Record:

SOOR maintains a special record which includes disclosures by board members and the executive management of the ownership
percentage of the company’s shares in addition to declarations by insiders which are updated as per provisions of CMA regulation
noting that such record is made available for perusal by all the company’s shareholders without charge or consideration. More-
over, SOOR periodically updates this record in a manner which reflects condition of the stakeholders.

3- Investor Affairs Unit
Vice President of Finance and Accounts Department has been instructed to undertake investors™ affairs management. He will be
held liable for making available and providing the financial statements, information and reports required by potential investors.

4- Upgrade of IT Infrastructure & Strict Reliance thereon in Disclosure Processes:-

SOOR uses Information Technology at a large level by upgrading several systems adopted in the company’s various operations.
Furthermore, SOOR possesses a substantial and effective website encompassing all information and data pertinent to the com-
pany's business together with the latest developments which help investors as well as current and potential investors to practice
their rights and evaluate the company's performance in addition to a section related to corporate governance noting that SOOR
periodically updates its website.

Eighth Rule: Respect of Shareholders’ Rights

1- Identification and protection of shareholders’ general equities to ensure fairness and equality among

shareholders:-

+ SOOR has a recognized policy belonging to shareholders™ equity. Further, SOOR articles of association include
procedures and restrictions required for all shareholders to practice their rights in order to improve and protect
shareholders™ general equity for ensuring fairness and equality among all shareholders regardless of their levels.
Under no circumstances, the company shall not conceal any information or any of shareholders™ equity.

+ Herein below some of shareholders general equity guaranteed by SOOR:

- Entry of shareholding in the company’s registers.

- Shareholders’ rights to deal with shares including possession’s registration and/ or acquisition.

- Shareholder right to obtain the prescribed share of dividends.

- Shareholder receives a share of the company's assets in case of liquidation.

- Shareholder right to obtain the details and information pertaining to the company’s activity as well as operational
and investment strategy in a regular and proper manner.

- Shareholder's right to participate in general assembly in addition to voting over its decisions.

- Shareholder's right to elect board members.

- Monitor the company’s performance in general and the Board of Directors’s assignments in particular.

2- Accuracy and On-Going Monitoring of Shareholders’ Data:

For progressive monitoring of all matters related to shareholders™ details, SOOR maintains a special register with a Clearing
Agency. This register contains shareholders’ names, nationalities, addresses and number of shares held by each one of them.
Any changes made to the details, set forth in such register, are updated in shareholders’ register based on the details received
by the company or clearance agency. Each concerned person is entitled to request the company or clearing agency to provide
him with statements of such register.

3- Method to Encourage Shareholders to Participate and Vote in SOOR General Assembly Meetings:
+ SOOR respects shareholders’ right to participate in the company’s general assembly meetings and vote over its decisions. This
is deemed as an original right of shareholders irrespective of their different levels noting that participation and voting mechanism
therein is contemplated in Shareholders™ Equity Policy and governance framework applicable at SOOR in conformity to the com
pany's articles of association. The company's articles of association clearly include the procedures and restrictions required for
ensuring participation by all shareholders of their rights in a manner which establishes fairness and equality without inconsisten
cy with the applicable laws and regulations as well as the orders and instructions issued in this regard.
SOOR has approved shareholders™ participation mechanism in the company's general assembly meetings based on an
invitation by the Board of Directors for meeting within three months following the end of the fiscal year noting that convention by
SOOR shall be through all notification channels including Kuwait Stock Exchange's website and daily newspapers. The Board
of Directors invites the general assembly for meeting if required or at a justified request by a number of shareholders who hold
not less than ten percent of the company’s capital or at request of the auditor in the course of fifteen days of request.
SOOR approves voting mechanism as to shareholders™ general meetings as set forth in the company’s articles of association
by allowing all shareholders to participate in voting right without placing any obstacles which may lead to voting restriction. This
is because voting is an original right to shareholder. Hence, it cannot be terminated in any way.
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Ninth Rule: Respect the Rights of stakeholders

1- Regulations and policies which ensure protection and recognition stakeholders’ rights:

SOOR respects and protects rights of stakeholders in all incoming and outgoing transactions. Therefore, it has prepared,

within the company’'s governance framework, a policy approved by the Board of Directors including rules and procedures which
ensures the protection of stakeholders’ rights and allow them to obtain indemnifications if any of their rights are breached.

For no conflict of interests belonging to stakeholders, either in connection with contracts or spot transactions with the company,
with those pertinent to shareholders, it is worth saying that stakeholders may not obtain privileges via their dealing in contracts and
transactions which fall within the company’s usual activities. Moreover, the company determines internal policies and regulations
which ensure an obvious mechanism in respect of awarding all various types of contracts and transactions via tenders or different
purchase orders.

2- Encouraging stakeholders to participate in monitoring SOOR's different activities:

The company allows stakeholders to obtain the information and data pertaining to their activities to be depended on in a timely
and regular manner.

In addition, the company sets proper mechanisms to make it easier for stakeholders to forward a report to the company's Board
of Directors on any unsound practices burdened on them by the company noting that proper protection shall be made available
to reporting parties.

Tenth Rule: Encourage and Enhance Performance

1- Board of Directors & Executive Management Members™ Progressive Training Program & Course Mechanism:
SOOR approves adequate training programs, workshops and conferences for the current board members and the executive
management pertaining to the company’s business and role of board members in order to elaborate their skills and expertise in
addition to matching with developments in a manner which helps them to perform their duties.

2- Overall Appraisal of Board of Directors Performance & Individual Performance of each Board member and
Executive Management member:

SOOR has applied systems and appraisals so as to evaluate performance of board members as well as executive management
members on a periodical basis. In this regard, evaluation relies on a series of key performance indicators related to accom-
plishment of the company's strategic goals, effective risk management and adequate internal audit for appraisal of each of the
aforementioned members as well as the relevant committees. In addition, there are performance indicators which evaluate the
executive management performance on an annual basis to reflect their points of strength and weakness and deal with them to
the benefit of SOOR.

3- Corporate Value Creation:

Board of Directors strives to establish short, medium and long-term values by determining and providing mechanism and proce-
dures which can fulfill the company’s strategic goals and improve performance rates in a manner that efficiently participates in
motivating employees to work continually to maintain the company’s financial integrity.

The company works hard on internal and integral reporting systems to become more comprehensive as this helps the board mem-
bers as well as the executive management to make decisions effectively hence meeting shareholders’ interests.

Eleventh Rule: Focus on the Importance of Corporate Social Responsibility
1- Making balance between SOOR goals and society targets as well as programs and social responsibility
work:

SOOR has determined a policy to make balance between the company's goals and society objectives represented in improving
living, social and economic conditions of society.

2- Adopted programs and mechanisms which reflect the efforts exerted by SOOR at social work level:

“Protégés Program” which aims at preparing youths for success in their career lives in addition to creating a generation
of enlightened youths via training and courses provided by the program.

Sponsorship of graduation projects for College of Engineering, Kuwait University to encourage students to be creative in
their academic areas and consolidate their practical skills.

Sponsorship of the annual exhibition for job and educational opportunities established at the Public Authority for Applied
Education & Training. It aims at educating and guiding High school, college and institutions’ students, who are about to
graduate, by providing job options at different sectors.

Sponsorship of “Women’s Ramadan Tournament” for football which aims at encouraging and developing women’s roles
in Kuwaiti sports.

Sponsorship of a participant in Bahrain motor racing which was held in Kingdom of Bahrain to encourage youths to take
part in international championships in different sports.

“ALFA HORSE JUMPING COMPETITION” which is the first tournament organized by the company to hurdle jumping
talented youths so as to show their skills and partake in local championships.

Increasing employment of Kuwaitis.

Sponsorship and participation with “Omy Janaty” charitable organization on the World Day for People with Disabilities by
participating in lectures. In addition, some employees have been trained on cardiac pulmonary resuscitation.

+ SOOR participated in protecting environment from pollution and environmental damages by waste recycling technology
at all parts of the company in addition to encouraging participants to collect wastes as an initial step for recycling. 7 3
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» | AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Audit Committee Formation
The Audit Committee was formed on 20/06/2016 as per a decision made by SOOR FUEL MARKETING COMPANY’s Board of
Directors in its meeting no. (5/2016) where the Audit Committee Members and the Chairman have been determined. Further, the
committee’s charter has been approved by the Board of Directors whereby the Audit Committee’s tenure comes to its end with the
elapse of Board of Directors duration.

Audit Committee Members
The Audit Committee comprises of three members: two Non-Executive members and one Independent Member.
+ Mr. Hani Fawaz Abdulrahman

Education: Holds a Bachelor of Business Administration, Yarmouk University, Jordan. In addition to holding a Masters
Degree in Finance, The University of Jordan, Jordan.

+ Mr. Hani Fawaz Abdulrahman holds a chartered Financial Analyst (CFA), Financial Risk Manager (FRM) and Professional Risk
Manager (PRM) in addition to being a chartered alternative investment analyst with experience over 29 years in the field of invest-
ment, risk management and finance. Also, he is the Chief Executive Officer of National Leasing & Financing Company. He worked
for 15 years in Arab Bank (Jordan) Treasury Department and a market risks manager. He further worked for Housing Bank for Trade
& Finance as a manager of international investments. He is a member at several boards including SOOR FUEL MARKETING CO.

* Mr. Essa Ibrahim Al-Mousa

Education: Bachelor of Computer Science, Denver University/ USA.

+ Mr. Essa Al-Mousa has held several positions over 20 years in the field of IT Strategic Planning, project management, technical
and technological support, engineering and other general services. He was previously IT manager and assistant manager of Oula
Fuel Marketing Co.

* Mr. Jaber Mohammed Al-Hajeri

Education: High School Diploma, Kuwait
+ He held several positions over 31 years in the field of media. He worked as a Chief Executive Officer of Emma Real Estate Co.
He previously held a position as an advisor at Kuwait Journalists Association, an advisor of foreign media, Ministry of Information.
Moreover, he is a constituent member at Hateen CO-OP Society, Kuwait Society for Developing Democracy & a member at Kuwait
Journalists Association. As a board member, he has been a member in many boards.

Mrs. Rana Mazen Al-Khatib works as the secretary of the Audit Committee where she was nominated in the Audit Committee’s meet-
ing under no. (4/2016) dated 14/11/2016. She maintains and coordinate the Audit Committee’s meetings.

Audit Committee Formation Purpose

The main purpose beyond the constitution of Audit Committee is to support and back up the Board of Directors to perform its supervi-

sory liabilities represented in soundness and integrity of financial reports and the company's internal controls as well as independent

internal audit running activities, evaluation of external auditor and internal auditor's performance.

Audit Committee Properties

1- Audit Committee members have the required academic degrees in addition to practical expertise on the field of Accounting and
Finance as indicated in the above brief summary for the Audit Committee Members.

2- The Audit Committee is permitted to consult any independent advisory firm at the company’s expense.

3- In connection with the Audit Committee’s recommendations forwarded in 2018 to the Board of Directors, there was no contra
diction between the Audit Committee’s recommendations and the Board of Directors decisions.

Audit Committee Meetings
The Audit Committee shall meet regularly four times at least in a year and quarterly noting that the Audit Committee held ten meetings
in 2018 including periodical meetings with internal auditor and external auditor. All members are notified of the committee’s agenda
three days at least prior to the meeting date in order to allow them adequate time for review and perusal. Further, the Audit Committee
has recorded its minutes as follows:

Meeting No. Meeting date % of attendees Venue
(1/2018) 21/02/2018 100% Company Headquarters
(2/2018) 14/03/2018 100% Company Headquarters
(3/2018) 14/03/2018 100% Company Headquarters
(4/2018) 22/03/2018 100% Company Headquarters
(5/2018) 13/05/2018 100% Company Headquarters
(6/2018) 07/08/2018 100% Company Headquarters
(7/2018) 27/09/2018 100% Company Headquarters
(8/2018) 11/11/2018 100% Company Headquarters
(9/2018) 02/12/2018 100% Company Headquarters
(10/2018) 16/12/2018 100% Company Headquarters
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Audit Committees’ Powers, Responsibilities and Achievements:
The Audit Committee reviewed its operation charter and the items, contemplated therein, have been approved in addition appraisal
of its performance and the assignments achieved by it in year 2018. The Audit Committee most important achievements and duties
during 2018 are as follows:
1- The Audit Committee has reviewed periodical financial statements before they were forwarded to the Board of
Directors. The Audit Committee expressed its opinion and forwarded a recommendation thereof to the board with
the intent of ensuring fair ness and transparency of financial reports in addition to making sure of soundness and
integrity of financial reports as well as the company’s internal controls where the company held its periodical
meetings (quarterly) in which there was review of the financial reports issued by the company” s Finance and
Accounts Department and the external auditor firm noting that Audit Committee has forwarded a recommendation in this regard.
As such, written undertaking, related to soundness and integrity of financial statements ending on 31 December
2018, was provided.
2- Monitored the external auditor's assignments and ensured that he has never provided services to the company
other than those required for audit profession.
3- The Audit Committee reviewed the external auditor's comments on the company’s financial statements and
followed up what has been made in this regard.
4- Evaluated adequacy of the company’s internal controls systems and prepared a report which includes the com
mittee’s opinion and recommendations in this regard.
5- Conducted technical supervision over SOOR Fuel Marketing Company's internal audit services by Al-Aiban &
Al-Qatami Company in order to verify their competence in performing the assignments and duties determined by
the Board of Directors.
6- The Audit Committee reviewed the Corporate Governance and the Audit report before they have been forwarded
to shareholders™ general assembly.
7- The Audit Committee reviewed and approved the audit plan proposed by the internal auditor and commented
thereon.
8- The Audit Committee forwarded a recommendation to the Board of Directors for nomination and reappointment of
external auditor or changing him and determining his fees.
9- The Audit Committee reviewed the Internal Control Review report evaluation after studying and evaluating the
adequacy of such audit controls by SOOR FUEL MARKETING COMPANY in addition to following up what has
been made in regard to the aforementioned comments.
10- The Audit Committee discussed internal audit reports of various departments together with emphasis on SOOR
FUEL MARKETING COMPANY" s compliance with its stated covenants as a response to comments.
11- The Audit Committee met four times with the internal auditor (Al-Aiban & Al-Qatami Company — Member of Grant
Thornton International) to follow up the company" s internal audits and review audit reports as to the company's
various departments.
Based on the aforementioned, in connection with Audit Committee task of 2018, Audit Committee members confirm their strict compli-
ance with implementation of the assignments entrusted to them by the Board of Directors in conformity to the rec ognized practices in
this field as well as the instructions and decisions of the relevant supervisory authorities and — in particular - Capital Market Authority.

Review of Financial Statements

External Auditor: Al-Aiban, Al-Osaimi & Partners — Member of Ernst and Young.

During the fiscal year ending on 31 December 2018, the external auditor reviewed the periodical and annual financial statements
which have been forwarded to the Audit Committee for discussion in addition to presenting a recommendation thereof to the board
for approval and consent thereto.

Appraisal of Internal Controls

The Board of Directors’s duties and liabilities shall establish and apply the company's adequate internal audit controls taking into
consideration consistency of such controls with the benefits expected from their application.

SOOR FUEL MARKETING COMPANY has contracted with Al-Qatami & Al-Aiban Company — Member of Grant Thornton Internation-
al to evaluate and review the company's internal audit controls of the year ending on 31 December 2018 provided that inspection cov-
ers the company’'s general supervisory environment, conformance and compliance with the corporate governance principles issued
by CMA. Due to deficiencies in any internal audit system, misstatements or violations, which may not be discovered or pursued, are
likely to occur. Similarly, the difficulty for evaluating such systems for future periods is subject to risks as management information and
audit procedures may be insufficient due to changes of circumstances or as a result of low compliance with such procedures taking
into consideration all comments to be stated in the report and dealing with them very clearly and transparently.
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